
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Scrutiny 
Committee

Councillor J S Hawkes (Chairman)
Councillor M J Davis (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor A Bardoe Councillor M A Maddison
Councillor J Burrell Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor R M Currans Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor P Cutler Councillor J M Ozog
Councillor J A Hayes Councillor D J Reynolds
Councillor S R Jarnell Councillor A S Sandhu MBE
Councillor Mrs M B Kelly Councillor Mrs R F Storey
Councillor C S McLean

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Tuesday 17 April 2018

at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Tuesday 17 April 2018

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 
2018 

(Pages 1 - 
16)

4. Urgent Items 

The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 

5. To consider references from other Committees (IF ANY) 

There are presently, no references from other Committees for 
Members to consider.

6. Chairman's Update 

7. Regulation 9 Notice (Pages 17 
- 20)

To note the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 13 
March 2018 to 31 July 2018. 

8. Draw-Down: Dartford Borough Council - Readiness for full roll-
out of Universal Credit in July 2018 

(Pages 21 
- 32)

To receive a joint report from the Heads of Housing Services and 
Revenues & Benefits at the request of the Labour Group.



9. Princess Park Update (Pages 33 
- 42)

To receive a report from the Sport and Communities Officer together 
with an update from the Operations Manager, Dartford Football Club 
(attached as Appendix A to the report)

10. Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018-19 (Pages 43 
- 46)

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for the ensuing 2018-
19 municipal cycle, as provisionally set out in the draft Work Plan 
attached as Appendix A to the report. 



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 6 February 
2018 at 7.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor J S Hawkes (Chairman)
Councillor M J Davis (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Mrs. M Currans
Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor S R Jarnell 
Councillor J Jones (Substitute)
Councillor Mrs. M B Kelly
Councillor M A Maddison
Councillor C S McLean
Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog
Councillor J M Ozog
Councillor D J Reynolds
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE
Councillor Mrs. R F Storey

ABSENT: Councillor A Bardoe
Councillor J Burrell
Councillor Paul Cutler
Councillor T A Maddison

Dartford Borough Council Officers:-

Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services)
Peter Dosad – Head of Housing Services
Paul Koster – Housing Maintenance Manager

CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT:   Councillor J A Kite MBE, Leader of the Council; 
Cllr. P F Coleman, Portfolio Holder for Housing, Front Line Services & Customer 
Champion; Cllr. Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio Holder for Events, Leisure & Heritage; 
Cllr. A Lloyd, Portfolio Holder for Strategic Council Finances & Major Capital Projects; 
Cllr. K M Kelly, Portfolio Holder for Transport & Infrastructure

32. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors; A Bardoe, J 
Burrell, P Cutler and T A Maddison (Substitute Cllr. J Jones).

The Chairman welcomed Councillor J A Kite MBE Leader of the Council to the 
meeting and his fellow Cabinet Members; Cllr. P F Coleman (Housing), Cllr. K 
M Kelly (Transport & Infrastructure), Cllr. A Lloyd (Finance & Major Capital 
Projects) and Cllr. Mrs. P A Thurlow (Events, Leisure & Heritage).



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

2

The presence of the Strategic Director (Internal Services), the Head of 
Housing Services and the Housing Maintenance Manager was noted and 
welcomed by Members. 

The Chairman confirmed that as previously agreed by Members, the Orchard 
Theatre Director had not been required to appear before the Committee to 
present the Orchard Theatre Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17 
documents [Item 12 pages 93-146]. The item would be considered on the 
papers presented and similarly going forward, subject to Members’ continued 
agreement.  

Members received as a tabled document, an updated Regulation 9 Notice 
covering the period up to 31 May 2018 published on 2 February (Item 7).

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

34. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 
NOVEMBER 2017 

Through the Chairman, the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Events, Leisure & 
Heritage sought clarification over Min. No. 30 – Dartford Festival 2017.  
Specifically the Chairman’s recoded statement [penultimate para. agenda p.8] 
which noted a ‘decrease in stall holders and increase in sponsorship’. The 
Cabinet Member could not recall the Chairman making this statement on 14 
November 2017.

The Chairman advised that he did recall making the statement [drawn from 
his understanding of the report presented to the Committee] but undertook to 
consult his notes and confer with the Committee Co-ordinator as necessary. 

The Committee Co-ordinator confirmed that he recalled the Chairman making 
the statement and that the Minutes were designed to reflect the welcome 
trend of the increasing numbers of stall holders becoming financial sponsors 
of the Festival.

The Cabinet Member asked that it be noted for the record that the number of 
stall holders at the Dartford Festival had not decreased in 2017 and that there 
was in fact a waiting list for stall holder slots.

With these clarifications Members RESOLVED:

1. That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2017 be 
confirmed.

35. URGENT ITEMS 

The Chairman announced that there were no urgent items for consideration.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

3

36. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other Committees.

37. REGULATION 9 NOTICE 

Members received as a tabled document, an updated Regulation 9 Notice 
published on 2 February 2018.

Additional items detailed as key decisions for consideration by Cabinet on 8 
March 2018 were; Refuse Collection and Street Cleaning Contract, Howbury 
Strategic Rail Freight Interchange and Housing Benefit Overpayment Write-
offs 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the contents of the updated Regulation 9 covering the period 2 
February 2018 to 31 May 2018 Notice tabled for Members 
consideration be noted.

38. HOMELESSNESS REVIEW 2017 [DRAW-DOWN] 

Members considered on a draw-down basis, the report presented to Cabinet 
on 7 December 2017 which enclosed for approval the Council’s 
Homelessness Review 2017 (Appendix A to the report); being the first stage 
in developing Dartford’s wider Homelessness Strategy in 2018.

At the invitation of the Chairman, the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Housing and 
the Leader of the Council responded jointly on behalf of the Administration.

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder advised Members that the Council’s 
Homelessness Review 2017 formed part of the analysis for, and would 
provide a major building block towards, the formulation of the Council’s 
Homelessness Strategy for 2018. The other key element in formulating the 
Council’s 2018 Strategy was the Homeless Reduction Act 2017 [in force from 
2 April 2018]. The requirements of the 2017 Act would impose significant new 
burdens and financial obligations on Dartford and all local authorities. The 
Council’s Homelessness Strategy 2018 would reflect those realities and be 
defined by the main findings of the 2017 Review, as summarised in paras 3.5 
to 3.15 of the covering report [Agenda pages 15/17].

A Member noted that data from Porchlight had registered a 37% increase in 
homelessness in Dartford and that figures published by Shelter recorded 
Dartford as having the highest number of homeless in a Kent borough. He 
asked whether the Council’s Homelessness Strategy 2018 would not just 
target ‘rough sleepers’ but also the ‘hidden homeless’ in Dartford, a category 
which was universally accepted as far out-numbering ‘rough sleepers’ in any 
given urban environment.
 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

4

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder confirmed that Homelessness was a Cabinet 
priority, with ‘rough sleepers’ an especial priority, but that the Council’s 
Homelessness Strategy 2018 would address all aspects of homelessness as 
required under the 2017 Act. In response to a related follow-up question, the 
Leader confirmed that the Council’s 2018 Strategy, whilst focussing on the 
outcomes of the 2017 Review, would have a wider remit. 

In further response to the Member, the Leader of the Council advised that the 
accuracy of the Porchlight and Shelter data for Homelessness in Dartford was 
problematical. The Council had no relationship with Shelter but did liaise with 
Porchlight, but the data published by both organisations was not recognised 
as accurate by Cabinet. In recent Council discussions with Porchlight their 
representative had also expressed doubts over the accuracy of the data for 
Dartford. The Council gave priority to Dartford residents assessed as 
‘homeless’ but Shelter had a different interpretation of the ‘homeless’ figure 
for the Borough, and included both Dartford residents and those homeless 
families transferred to Dartford by London authorities for accommodation. This 
amounted to ‘double counting’ in the Council’s view and distorted the true 
picture of Homelessness in the Borough. He added that Porchlight were on 
record as praising the Council’s work regarding Homelessness in the 
Borough.

Another Member expressed particular concern over the loss of tied or rented 
accommodation in the private sector in Dartford, due to the termination of 
assured shorthold tenancies (ASTs) which had been quoted in the Review as 
the main reason for the rise of homelessness in the Borough [covering report 
para 3.10 – agenda p.16]. He suggested that the increased trend amongst 
private sector landlords to terminate ASTs was a direct consequence of the 
Government’s changes to the benefits system. 

He referred Members to para 9.5 of the Council’s Homelessness Review 2017 
– Welfare reforms – specifically the table at sub-para 9.5.1 [agenda p.42]. The 
table itemised a shortfall of £96 between the level of the Local Weekly 
Housing Allowance in Dartford in 2017 for a 2 bed property, and the average 
weekly rental for such a property in Dartford in 2017. The figures 
demonstrated Government reforms to the welfare system were having an 
obvious negative impact on the ability of welfare claimants to secure 
accommodation in the private rental sector in the Borough.  

The Leader gave a further response on behalf of Cabinet. 

He advised that private sector accommodation in Dartford [and nationwide] 
was under enormous pressure. The situation in Dartford was exacerbated by 
London authorities (who had more rental revenue to spend than the Council) 
transferring their ‘homeless’ families out of London where rents were highest 
into private rented properties in Dartford [and elsewhere] where rents were 
cheaper. This had driven up private sector rent levels in the Borough with 
Dartford landlords reacting to market forces accordingly, to secure increased 
income. He referred Members to para 6.2.1 of the Council’s 2017 Review 
[agenda p.33/34] which stated that: -



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

5

 ‘The main reason for termination [of assured shorthold tenancy (AST)] is 
usually because the landlord wants the property returned. Only a small 
proportion of terminations are due to rent arrears’. 

Landlords wanted higher paying tenants and current market forces dictated 
that they could pursue that option: given the policies of higher paying London 
boroughs who continued to transfer their residents to Dartford for 
accommodation in the private sector. To ascribe the growing trend by private 
sector landlords in Dartford to terminate existing AST’s directly to the 
Government’s benefit reforms was, he suggested, an oversimplification of a 
complex problem and ignored the market forces at work driven by high 
demand across the sector nationally. 

The Vice-Chairman asked whether Officers ‘benchmarked’ Dartford’s 
statistics for ‘Homelessness’ with similar local authorities in Kent, and voiced 
his own reservations over the accuracy and impartiality of Shelter’s 
‘Homelessness’ data for the Borough.

The Head of Housing Services advised that the data provided for 
‘Homelessness’ in Dartford in the Council’s 2017 Review was unique to the 
Borough, its profile and circumstances. Reference to other authorities was not 
therefore particularly useful or directly relevant. He also expressed particular 
concern over the data provided by Shelter for the Borough which, on 
investigation, had revealed that Shelter included both London and KCC 
residents transferred into the Borough in their ‘Homeless’ data for Dartford 
and he believed those figures were also ‘double-counted’ by Shelter into KCC 
and London borough statistics for homelessness.

In further reference to the demonstrable negative impact of the Government’s 
welfare reforms, the same Member referred the Committee to sub-para 9.5.3 
of the Council’s 2017 Review which commented on the increased age 
threshold for single people in shared accommodation from 25 to 35 years. As 
a consequence, the amount of Local Housing Allowance entitlement for single 
under-35 year olds in the private rented sector amounted to the going rate for 
a single room in a shared property in Dartford, making the accommodation 
options for that age category in the Borough very limited. He suggested that it 
was the responsibility of the Council to mitigate the effects of this Government 
policy.

The Leader of the Council advised that it was not the obligation of the Council 
to contest Government policy but to accommodate Dartford residents. Some 
Government policy helped local authorities some hindered their efforts. The 
Council’s obligation was to mitigate the effects of Government policy for 
Dartford residents through appropriate local measures.

The Head of Housing Services confirmed for the Member that Discretionary 
Housing Payments were disbursed by the Council’s joint Revenue & Benefits 
Service based in Sevenoaks, but he did not know the total of that budget. He 
understood that only a limited amount of funding remained in the current 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

6

financial cycle, that expenditure was tracked for budgetary forecast purposes, 
and that the discretionary payments made to date had led to positive 
outcomes for residents. 

In response to a variety of further questions and expressions of concern from 
the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Members, the Leader of the Council and 
the Head of Housing Services confirmed the following points:

 Temporary rented accommodation provided by the Council (including 
placements outside the Borough)  was always vetted, self-contained 
and of a good standard;

 No families with children were accommodated in Bed & Breakfast  
accommodation;

 The Council would continue to carry the funding ‘gap’ in the Housing 
Revenue Budget in the short-term, but acknowledged that a long-term 
solution was required, given continued market pressure in the private 
rental sector, estimated to increase the gap in the HB to some £700K 
p.a. an unsustainable amount in the long-term, despite a healthy over-
all financial picture for the Council;

 The Council’s 2018 Strategy would concentrate on the provision of 
temporary accommodation in the short-term and meeting the 
‘homelessness’ obligations imposed by the 2017 Act, but be balanced 
but a long-term commitment to the provision of permanent 
accommodation;

 To develop the ‘Housing First’ model in Dartford would require the 
Council to seek partners from the private sector which, given the low 
percentage of residents in temporary accommodation ‘re-presenting’ 
for was not deemed a viable model for Dartford to pursue;

 Annex 1 to the 2017 Review document - ‘Delivery of (the) Previous 
Homeless Strategy’ – was a candid open document retained to help 
the Council do better and inform the 2018 Strategy where relevant. 
Several identified ‘Tasks’ in Annex 1 had been put on hold or overtaken 
by the requirements of the new 2017 Act and marked simply as 
‘Ongoing’ or ‘Not Achieved ’ in the ‘Outcome’ column of Annex 1. 
These topics would be re-visited as appropriate and reflected in the 
2018 Strategy;

 The 2018 Strategy would also ensure that the issue of ‘hidden 
homelessness’ in the Borough was fully addressed and that young 
people and vulnerable families were prioritised. The provisions of the 
new 2017 Act were viewed by Officers as beneficial to under 35s and 
single people;

 The role and engagement of private sector landlords in Dartford to 
provide solutions to the provision of temporary and longer lease 
accommodation in the Borough was crucial [Review Conclusions 
chapter 11 agenda p.28/29]. The Housing Team were in regular 
contact with private sector landlords in the Borough and took every 
opportunity to re-assure Landlords regarded their pivotal role;

 Ex-Servicemen and serving members of the HM Armed Forces were a 
priority group for Council housing, including the provision of resources 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

7

for those ‘sleeping rough’ or suffering from mental health issues. The 
provision of Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (‘SWEP’) enabled 
the Council to react to a period of extreme weather, typically up to 3 
days, but was flexibly managed.

Following the debate the Committee received positive, first hand anecdotal 
evidence from Members involved in the Council’s Winter Shelter facility; 
including praise from the ‘hidden homeless’ and ‘rough sleeping’ residents 
who had been helped by Council Officers to gain employment and more 
permanent accommodation.

The Chairman thanked all Members for their contribution to the debate and 
the Leader, Portfolio Holder and the Head of Housing Services for attending 
and responding to the concerns of the Committee.

He proposed that the Minutes recording the Committee’s discussion of the 
Council’s Homelessness Review 2017 and the measures prosed for inclusion 
in the Council’s subsequent Homelessness Strategy 2018 document be 
forwarded to Cabinet for their further consideration and comment.

RESOLVED:

1. That the record of the Committee’s discussions of the report to Cabinet 
dated 7 December 2017 and the Council’s Homelessness Review 2017 
document (attached as Appendix A to the report) being the first stage 
in developing Dartford’s wider Homelessness Strategy in 2018; be 
referred to Cabinet for consideration and further comment, prior to 
submission to the GAC in April.

39. CORPORATE PLAN: KEY ACTIONS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
MONITORING REPORT - SECTION 5 HOUSING & STRONGER 
COMMUNITIES [DRAW-DOWN] 

The report from the Head of Housing Services, provided Members with the 
background to the Housing Performance Indicator (PI) for ‘Percentage of 
Repairs Completed on Time’ - as detailed in Appendix B to the report to 
Cabinet dated 7 December 2017. The PI had been drawn-down by the 
Committee for scrutiny given a failure to meet target for 6 (six) consecutive 
Quarters.

The Chairman opened the topic for Members to pose questions to Cabinet 
Members in attendance.

A Member questioned, given the current volumes of repair work, why the 
Council continued to set targets that on the evidence of the past 6 (six) 
consecutive Quarters the Contractor was clearly unable to meet. He 
estimated the [combined] shortfall from target as some 400% over the 18 
month period in question. He asked why such a sustained shortfall in 
performance had been allowed to [continue] to occur.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

8

The Portfolio Holder for Housing gave an initial response on behalf of Cabinet.  
He advised Members that bi-monthly meetings were held with the Contractor 
to discuss problems and that the Contractor was an improvement on the 
previous Council contractor. Completion of emergency repairs remained good 
at 99% but a combination of adverse weather and resident absence [when the 
Contractor’s workmen called] had been significant factors in ‘pushing back’ 
completion times for non-urgent repairs. It was important to keep targets 
realistic but ‘stretching’ for the Contractor.

The Member maintained his doubts over current target levels, given the 
record of failure over 6 consecutive Quarters and suggested that such a 
consistent failure to meet targets set suggested a need to drive innovation in 
the Contractor’s current working practices.

The Leader advised that the current targets were good and realistic and had 
continued to be approved by tenant and leaseholder representatives at the 
Council’s Resident Involvement Joint Liaison Group (RIJLG) meetings 
throughout the period under review. Tenant representatives on the RIJLG 
understood the need for the Council and the Contractor to switch resources to 
meet unforeseen eventualities such as severe unforeseen weather. There 
may be a case for re-calibrating some targets to improve the urgent/non-
urgent repair target relationship and this would be kept under review by the 
Housing Team. However, the main objective for the Council was tenant 
satisfaction. This continued to be achieved, as confirmed by tenant 
representatives in their regular meetings with the Leader, Portfolio holder and 
the Head of Housing Services and his Team. The Council’s repairs service 
and operation was far better than a tenant could expect from a private sector 
landlord, or the average property owner could afford to spend on their 
property.

The Head of Housing Services advised Members that he and his Housing 
Maintenance Manager took the Contractor’s failure to meet the target for non-
urgent repairs over the previous 6 Quarters personally. In a sustained effort to 
get the Contractor’s performance for non-urgent repairs back on target, the 
Housing Team constantly reviewed and monitored the Contractor’s 
performance. That analysis by the Housing Team showed that the Contractor 
could probably benefit from hiring 2 (two) extra multi-skilled operatives to clear 
the back-log of non-urgent repair work, but that the cost margins in the 
Contractor’s successful 2010 bid to secure the current Council contract were 
too tight to finance expanded recruitment. That said, the Council’s Housing 
Stock was in good condition, both the cost and number of repairs were down 
and customer/tenant satisfaction remained high. The Contractor’s current 
problems lay in their bid for the 2010 contract, which the company was aware 
was due to end in 2020. The new contract terms would not be set at the 
present target levels, which the Council still deemed realistic, the Contractor 
was missing targets by minutes not days.

In response to further specific questions from Members concerning the 
current contract with the Contractor and looking forwards, to the letting of the 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

9

Council’s next 10 year contract from 2020, the Head of Housing Services 
gave the following advice to the Committee:

 There were seasonal variances for the volume of urgent and non-
urgent repair work the Contractor undertook to Council properties but 
the contractor did not use/identify these ‘windows of opportunity’ to 
clear the backlog of non-urgent repairs [estimated at 200 jobs];

 The Contractor had a limited number of multi-skilled operatives in their 
employ and the market availability of similar multi-skilled tradesmen in 
Dartford for temporary hire [to clear the back-log] was scarce;

 Despite the Contractor’s performance in the preceding 18 month 
period, a 10 year contract [split into 7 years and a 3 year renewal 
based on previous performance] was still viewed as the best option 
for the Council and cheaper than three separate 3 year contracts;

 The new 10 year contract from 2020 would be let with the aid of an 
external consultant to ensure a fault-free commissioning and 
tendering process, feature revised targets, but retain the longevity 
aspect to enable the successful Contractor to spread his costs over 
the life of the contract.

The Leader re-stated the Council’s primary policy aim of customer satisfaction 
for tenants from a good repair service which was the case, based on all the 
feed-back from tenants and their participation in the Council’s joint Forum and 
Resident Groups. The Council paid for resident/tenant representatives to 
attend   courses in housing administration and residents were also directly 
involved in procurement and monitoring of contractors.

The Portfolio Holder noted that the Council’s high rental collection rate was 
added evidence of customer satisfaction of a good repair service.

The Chairman asked what cost implications would apply to a more flexible 
contract from 2020 [with the present contractor or another company] and 
whether the Council had given any thought to running its own ‘in-house’ repair 
service.

The Leader advised that a well prepared procurement process by Officers, 
with tenant input and market guidance from an independent external 
consultant, would be key to ensuring a new more flexible repair contract from 
2020 going forward. The alternative of the Council running its own internal 
repair work-team would be onerous in terms of administration and the hiring of 
skilled multi-tradespeople, and expensive in terms of salaries and the 
procurement of materials, and had been discounted for those reasons.

In response to a specific question from a Member, the Housing Maintenance 
Manager detailed the following elements in the existing customer feed-back 
process, to determine tenant satisfaction with the current repair service to 
Council properties provided by the Contractor:



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

10

 All repairs are tracked and customer satisfaction initially obtained by 
the Contractor’s operative who hands the tenant a hand-held device to 
confirm their satisfaction for the repair completed – ‘Box 6 – Satisfied’ 
was the overall score obtained by the Contractor across the repair 
service spectrum;

 Checks by Housing Services of the Contractor’s returns showed only a 
1-2% variance;

 Benchmarking was also undertaken by the Council of tenants who 
completed a return with the Contractor, with all benchmarked tenants 
expressing satisfaction with the Contractor’s service;

 The Contractor continually benchmarked their own customer surveys 
[minimum 10%] which showed that the vast majority of tenants were 
satisfied with the service and only 30 complaints received  

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the further background and explanations provided 
by the Head of Housing Services in his update report on the material 
presented to Cabinet for approval on 7 December 2017, and the further 
explanation given by Officers and responses from Cabinet Members in 
Committee on 6 February 2018.

40. IDENTIFIED INITIATIVES RESERVE 2017-18 [DRAW-DOWN] 

The report from the Financial Services Manager detailed expenditure from the 
Identified Initiatives Reserve (IIR) for the 207-18 financial cycle to date 
(attached as Appendix A to the report) as requested by the Chairman of 
Scrutiny, prior to submission of the budget to the General Assembly of the 
Council (Budget) meeting on 26 February 2018.

The report informed Members that identified expenditure from the IIR is 
initially approved by the Managing Director, and subsequently approved in 
detail directly by relevant Directors and Senior Managers as set out in 
Appendix A.

Areas of expenditure approved for payment from IIR monies in the 2017/18 
financial cycle to date included:

 Community Grants for local organisations reviewed by the 
Leader/Deputy Leader of the Council and approved by the Managing 
Director;

 Events managed by the Policy & Performance Team including the 
Steam Rally, St. George’s Day, Santa’s House and the Carol Concert;

 Feasibility Studies – primarily for the Stone Lodge site in 2017;
 Salute to Youth – awards programme for uniformed groups in Dartford 

reviewed by the Leader and Deputy Leader and approved by the 
Managing Director;



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

11

 Planning Local Development Framework – periodic work not in the 
local budget for necessary consultancy support to refresh Dartford’s 
Local Plan;

 Town Centre Promotions, initiatives and works as agreed, to support 
the town centre in support of the Capital Schemes Redevelopment 
Programme;

 Town Centre Wi-Fi – continued funding of this public provision.

The Leader confirmed the following points in response to individual questions 
from Members:

 The Leader and other Cabinet Members call down funds from the IIR 
for spending within their portfolio responsibilities, under the overall 
guidance of the Managing Director who ensured good governance and 
probity and consistency of expenditure throughout each annual 
spending cycle ;

 Ordinary Members could call on the IIR for monies providing the 
proposed expenditure conformed with the Council’s priorities and 
objectives;

 Local events were funded from the IIR [rather than a dedicated Events 
Budget] given their irregular nature e.g. 1914 and 1918 anniversary 
celebrations for WWI and the most recent celebration of the Suffragette 
movement: contingency use of the IIR gave vital fiscal flexibility for 
such one-off celebratory events;

 IIR funding of more regular Council events e.g. Carol Concert, Santa’s 
House also made sense in terms of flexibility given that formats might 
change or demand lessen;

 Some recurring Grants were financed from the IIR [rather than the 
Grants Budget] when flexibility was required or awards were made 
subject to the decision of a Panel. All such spending proposals/awards, 
including those proposed by the Leader and Deputy Leader were 
monitored by the Managing Director to ensure consistency, probity and 
good governance.

A Member asked when the Council’s Audit Board had last examined the 
workings of the IIR.

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Strategic Council Finances advised Members 
that the IIR was subject per se to scrutiny by the Council’s External Auditor 
Grant Thornton UK, the Council’s Internal Audit team, and independently by 
the Audit Board via  the standard agenda item for ‘Selective Invoice Checks’. 
Each Quarter a different Board Member was asked to randomly select 5 (five) 
creditor payments [beginning with the same letter] from all/any areas of 
Council expenditure for scrutiny by Internal Audit with the outcome formally 
reported back to the Board: invoices relating to IIR expenditure were included 
in the list for random selection by Audit Board Members. He confirmed in 
response to a follow-up question that the Audit Board could also chose to 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

12

scrutinise IIR expenditure as a whole, if it so wished as a dedicated agenda 
item. 

The Leader advised that in addition to the Managing Director monitoring the 
award of monies from the IIR, the spending of those monies by recipients was 
also monitored in detail by relevant Council Officers.    

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the details set out in Appendix A to the report, 
detailing expenditure from the Identified Initiatives Reserve 2017/18 to 
date.

41. COUNCIL EVENTS 2017 [DRAW-DOWN] 

The report from the Policy and Corporate Support Manager updated Members 
on events held in the Borough during 2017 (other than the Dartford Festival) 
which the Council had provided directly, or had been provided by others with 
support from the Council.

The Chairman proposed and Members agreed that the Vice-Chairman 
assume the Chairmanship for discussion of this item, drawn-down on behalf 
of his political Group.

The Acting Chairman thanked Officers for an excellent report and the Cabinet 
Portfolio Holder for her efforts on behalf of the Council and the residents of 
Dartford through-out the period under review. He asked:

(i) Who was responsible for the overall scheduling and co-ordination of 
the Council run and/or sponsored events;

(ii) Was there a link on the Council’s public website for the events to be 
included in the Council’s ‘Calendar of Events’;

(iii) Who made the artistic decisions on bands for the Festival and Plays 
and Films to be shown in Central Park.

 The Leader of the Council responded on behalf of Cabinet. He advised that:

(i) The co-ordination of the Council sponsored events was undertaken by 
the Parks and Town Centre Managers via a co-ordinated diaries 
and booking system, aided by the Projects & Events Officer in the 
Corporate Policy team;

(ii) The Council events ‘sold themselves’ and did not require marketing, 
but promotion through the ‘Calendar of Events’ posted on the 
Council’s website would be considered;



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

13

(iii) Ultimately the Council decides which acts will feature in the Dartford 
Festival and which plays are performed and films shown in Central 
Park, but seek views via social media for past performances and 
future content aiming at a spread of action-based, family and 
participatory productions.

He added that The Orchard Theatre had their own menu of productions 
including using local acts with a combination of HQ Theatres Ltd and the 
Council making the final choices.

A Member asked why the events were almost entirely located in the Town 
Centre.

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Events, Leisure & Heritage advised that 
access to the events was key and the Town Centre provided that with parking. 
Summer Sizzler events were held in the Parishes but residents liked the Town 
Centre and Central Park which drew significant numbers to the Bandstand 
concerts held on Sundays.

The Leader advised that whilst the majority of events were located in the 
Town Centre, they had a Borough-wide impact and appeal e.g. the St. 
George’s Day Parade and the Festival of Light. Parking in the Parishes was 
generally poor although Swanscombe & Greenhithe Town Council ran their 
own Carol Concerts and Cinema programme. Events in the Town Centre 
were free, in a central venue and promoted community inclusiveness.

In response to further questions regarding how the Council’s present schedule 
of events met Corporate Plan Objectives, stimulated Town Centre 
Regeneration and might be expanded from its present season theme base, 
the Leader of Council gave the following response.

Businesses in the Town Centre benefited enormously from the added footfall 
provided by the events and had tailored their opening hours to ‘support’ 
events such as the ‘Festival of Light’, ‘Cinema in the Park’ and the ‘Bandstand 
Concerts. In particular food outlets, taxi hire and the Café in the Park had all 
benefited from increased visibility and potential customer footfall. The free 
nature of the events programme contributed towards the Council’s Objectives 
for community inclusiveness, health and wellbeing. 

The current seasonal programme was set to continue with its 
Summer/Autumn/Winter scheduling theme, dictated by tradition and the 
weather, with no proposed expansion of the programme due to the absence 
of a dedicated Council Events Team.  

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder commended the present content and scheduling 
of Council events which; provided variety, interested all households and age-
groups, were well attended (irrespective of inclement weather) and attracted 
support from across Kent and Essex in addition to Dartford residents. She 
encouraged more Members to attend Council sponsored events and paid 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

14

particular praise to the new exhibition of paintings by students currently 
showing at the Sir Peter Blake Gallery.  

The Chairman expressed concern over a lack of an Events Strategy for the 
Council and a dedicated Events Team, whether this posed a risk for the 
Council and what the future direction of the present programme of events 
would be for the remainder of the decade.

The Leader advised that there was no intention to formulate a Council Events 
Strategy as it was not required. Common-sense and instinct for what works 
sufficed for a ‘no-gain’ programme, free at source, designed to make people 
happy. The current Corporate Policy, Parks and Town Centre teams loved 
their involvement in the Events programme and process and displayed an 
instinctive knack for what worked in the Dartford context developed over 
several years of operation. Feedback on events was sought by the Leader 
informally through social media and more formally by Officers through the 
‘morning after’ feedback forms. In response to a follow-up question, he 
advised that there was no inherent risk in the lack of specified role-holders for 
specific events. Losing experienced Council employees could have a ‘cost 
impact’ on an event, but it would still happen.

The Chairman next addressed the issue of feedback on Council Events, the 
lack of a dedicated Council Twitter feed or depository space, and how the 
Council ensured that the feed-back currently received via social media was 
representative of Dartford society as a whole.

The Leader advised that feedback cards for Council Events and social media 
responses were tracked by Officers and that a new DBC digital visual 
presence was due to be launched in the near future.

The Lead Member for Art, Sports & Recreation advised Members that the 
current programme of Council sponsored Events raised the profile of the 
Town and gave opportunities to Youth and Charity Groups to raise their own 
profiles through participation in events like the Carol Concert and the Festival 
of Light.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the report.

42. ORCHARD THEATRE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17 
[WORK PLAN] 

The covering report from the Leisure and Communities Officer presented for 
scrutiny by the Committee, the Annual Report and Accounts for the Orchard 
Theatre Dartford for the year ended 31 March 2017 from the management 
company HQ Theatres Ltd (attached as appendices B and C to the report). 
The Monitoring Schedule attached as Appendix A to the report, set out how 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

15

the Council had monitored the provision of services provided by HQ Theatres 
Ltd in the period under review.

The Chairman reminded Members that as previously agreed, going forward, 
the Orchard Theatre Director Chris Glover would no longer be required to 
appear before the Committee and that the Annual Report and Accounts for 
The Orchard would be scrutinised by the Committee on the papers presented 
in the Agenda.

In response to a question from the Vice-Chairman, the Leader of the Council 
advised that in addition to The Orchard Theatre, Mr Glover also managed HQ 
Theatres’ Ltd. operation in Bromley where he was now primarily based. H Q 
Theatres Ltd now regarded The Orchard Theatre as a success story and a 
demonstration of the company’s ability to ‘turn-around’ a failing operation. Mr 
Glover’s move to Bromley was a career development within HQ Theatres Ltd, 
much as his predecessor at The Orchard had gone on to manage The Dublin 
Opera House. 

Mr Glover’s day-to-day duties at The Orchard were undertaken by the Deputy 
Theatre Director based in Dartford.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17 for The 
Orchard Theatre, Dartford as presented in Appendices B and C to the 
report respectively;

43. REVIEW 2017-18 WORK PLAN 

The report from the Committee Co-ordinator asked Members to agree the 
contents of the Updated Work Plan 2017-18 document attached as Appendix 
A to the report.

Members’ proposed two further topics for scrutiny by the Committee in due 
course, subject to the deadlines of the draw-down process:

(i) ‘Go live date for roll-out of Universal Credit in the Borough’ – 
arising from Member discussion of agenda item 8 – ‘Homelessness 
Review 2017-18 [Min. No. 38 refers];

(ii) ‘Use of Council Funds’ – arising from Member discussion of agenda 
item 8 – ‘Homelessness Review 2017-18 [Min. No. 38 refers]. 

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the Updated Work Plan attached as 
Appendix A to the report;



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

16

2. That the draw-down proposals noted at (i) and (ii) above be advised to 
Member Services by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman respectively for 
their political Groups within the specified deadlines, for approval by the 
Managing Director.

The meeting closed at 9.21 pm

Councillor J S Hawkes
CHAIRMAN



13 March 2018 - 31 July 2018

1 of 3

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE

This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly.

All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively.

Cabinet Members:

Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Overall Strategy
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader, Strategic Service Provision & Town Centre
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Community Development
Councillor P F Coleman, Portfolio: Front Line Services, Customer Champion & Housing
Councillor K M Kelly, Portfolio: Transport and Infrastructure
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Strategic Council Finances & Major Capital Projects
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Events, Leisure & Heritage

All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk.

This notice supersedes all previous notices.

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/
mailto:memberservices@dartford.gov.uk


2 of 3

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Stone Lodge - Appropriation for 
Planning Purposes

  

Cabinet
12 Apr 2018

Appropriation for 
planning purposes to be 
advertised post in 
principle decision by 
Cabinet.

Marie Kelly-Stone, Head of Legal 
Services
Tel: 01322 343634
marie.kelly-
stone@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Dartford Town Centre Transport 
and Public Realm Improvements

   

Cabinet
12 Apr 2018

Teresa Ryszkowska, Head of 
Regeneration
Tel: 01322 343631
teresa.ryszkowska@dartford.gov.
uk

OPEN

Civic Centre Improvement Works

This report seeks approval from 
Members to support the 
refurbishment needed to the Civic 
Centre and commence the 
procurement process needed to 
appoint Contractors to deliver the 
work.

Cabinet
12 Apr 2018

Paul Koster, Housing 
Maintenance Manager
Tel: 01322 343623
paul.koster@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Howbury Strategic Rail Freight 
Interchange

To consider resourcing of the 
Council’s case at Public Inquiry.

Cabinet
12 Apr 2018

Teresa Ryszkowska, Head of 
Regeneration
Tel: 01322 343631
teresa.ryszkowska@dartford.gov.
uk

CLOSED - the report 
is exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended).



3 of 3

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Housing Benefit Overpayment 
Write-offs

To consider writing-off Housing 
Benefit overpayments where it has 
not been possible to obtain payment, 
where the Tribunals Service has 
exercised its discretion not to 
recover overpaid sums or where 
recovery is not permissible under the 
relevant Housing Benefit or Council 
Tax Benefit Regulations.

Cabinet
12 Apr 2018

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraphs 1 & 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)





SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

COUNCIL’S READINESS FOR FULL ROLL OUT OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT 
[DRAW-DOWN]

1. Summary

1.1. The Chairman of Scrutiny has requested, on a draw-down basis, a report 
detailing the Council’s readiness for the full roll-out of Universal Credit (UC) in 
the Borough scheduled for July 2018. This report gives specific information on 
the readiness of the Council to meet this challenge. 

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1      That the Committee note the contents of this report.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1.Universal Credit (UC) is a new benefit which is to replace means-tested social 
security benefits and tax credits for working-age individuals and families. The aim 
is to simplify and streamline the benefits system, improve work incentives, tackle 
poverty among low income families, and reduce the scope for fraud and error.

3.2.UC was first introduced for new claimants with relatively straightforward 
circumstances in certain areas in 2013. The UC ‘full service’ roll out is now 
progressing and this will enable all types of claimants to claim the benefit. For 
Dartford, the full service will begin in the Gravesend Job Centre in May 2018 and 
in the Dartford Job Centre in July 2018.

3.3.As at 8 February 2018, there are 774,600 people nationally on UC with 237 full 
service Jobcentres accepting claims for single claimants, couples and families.

3.4.The Dartford Job Centre has 449 people on UC and the Gravesend Job Centre has 
728.  Out of the 1,177 people receiving UC, 53 are Dartford Council tenants and 
88 receive Council Tax Reduction (CTR). 

3.5.The Department for Work & Pensions (DWP) insist that UC is working and have 
stated that roll-out of the full service will proceed according to the planned 
timetable. Their statistics show that 89% of people making new UC claims receive 
some payment, and 81% receive their full payment on time i.e. within 6 weeks, or 
5 weeks if they do not have to serve “waiting days” at the beginning of their claim.  

3.6.However, these statistics only cover the period once a claimant has registered their 
account, submitted details of their circumstances, accepted their responsibilities 
and made a formal declaration. Statistics are not available on how long claimants 
take to complete these preceding stages, and on how many accounts are deleted 
because of failures to complete the necessary steps in time.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

3.7. In respect of difficulties being experienced with the new benefit, they are likely to 
relate to:

 adapting to the new payment arrangements;
 budgeting over a month period where they are used to weekly/fortnightly 

payments;
 making and managing their claim digitally; and
 Prioritising and making payments of rent from their single Universal Credit 

payment.

4. Supporting Residents

4.1. Officers from the Council’s Housing Service arranged to visit all recipients of UC 
to ensure that claims were submitted successfully and to establish an ongoing 
rapport with them. Officers also had meetings with the DWP and local Job 
Centres to establish closer working relationships. The DWP also provided 
training for staff prior to implementation and when the HERO scheme was 
established.

4.2. The HERO scheme commenced in 2015 and the specific work areas covered 
by the scheme are:

 Getting tenants ready for UC;
 Generating income for the Council in terms of benefit claims; and
 Saving costs generated from sustainment of tenancies

4.3. The latest figures show that 191 referrals have been made to the scheme, with 
an average engagement of 63%.  HERO has 30 live cases and sees an average 
of 12 cases per week.  Most referrals are for debt advice, including rent arrears, 
and the number of referrals for UC cases is low. The majority of work around the 
prevention of homelessness is enabling access to benefits.

4.4. In addition to this, the scheme also enables tenants to access work 
opportunities, especially for those who are subject to the benefit cap. The HERO 
officer has also forged strong links with local Job Centres. The following details 
the spectrum of activity the scheme has contributed to:

 191 customer referrals;
 135 customers engaged with the service;
 30 live cases;
 £29,726 direct income to rent accounts;
 22 negotiated arrears offers;
 26 successful Housing Benefit (HB) claims, including back dates;
 4 cases cleared rent arrears;
 5 cases secured employment;
 24 cases referred for debt advice;
 34 new applications for Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP);
 21 new applications for Personal Independence Payment (PIP);
 139 cases closed; and



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

 3 UC cases.

4.5. The recently approved restructure of the Housing Options and Private Sector 
team, in light of the Homeless Reduction Act, also aims to assist in mitigating 
the impact of UC on vulnerable tenants by utilising a new triage homeless 
application process and the HUB. Both processes are designed to highlight 
specific issues around vulnerability and make appropriate referrals to relevant 
agencies.

4.6. Through the UC working group that has recently been established, Officers 
from Revenues & Benefits, Housing and Customer Services will be working 
together to ensure that UC claimants are aware of the support that the Housing 
HUB can provide. The work of this group will also help to inform Customer 
Services of other organisations who can provide advice and support so that 
residents can be quickly and easily signposted in appropriate circumstances – 
this includes the local food bank in Market Street where a good working 
relationship has already been established. 

4.7. From the work undertaken to date, it is also important to highlight other 
challenging factors such as homelessness, addiction, learning difficulties and 
mental health problems. Consequently, it is becoming apparent that more 
intensive, tailored support needs may need to be provided by local authorities, 
social landlords and independent advice services.

The areas requiring particular focus are:

 Personal budgeting support, alternative payment arrangements and the 
availability of information technology

 Making and managing digital claims for UC;
 Help and advice with housing options;
 Additional support with housing costs; and support with Council Tax 

costs

5. Review and Learn

5.1. In October 2017, through the Kent Revenues & Benefits Manager Group, a 
presentation was made by East Kent Services (Canterbury City Council, Dover 
District Council and Thanet District Council) giving an account of their 
experience with the UC full service which had gone live in some of the Job 
Centres in their respective districts. 

5.2. UC is primarily digital-by-default but customers have to check their UC accounts 
and manage their claim online on a regular basis. Failure to do this will result in 
their claim being closed down, followed by a process that the claimant then has 
to follow in order to get their claim reactivated.

5.3. In order to mitigate this risk the Council will: 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

 Continue to build good working relationships with DWP Partnership; 
Managers and UC Service Centre Managers

 Provide access to phones and computers;

 Work with UC claimants on computer literacy skills;

 Encourage claimants to take advantage of the support available and 
by referring to and partnering with other agencies; and

 Encourage claimants to report changes in their circumstances 
immediately

5.4. The volume of notifications received by Revenues and Benefits because of 
the UC full service is significant. The quality of notifications is currently of a 
poor standard and staff are increasingly being utilised as ‘paper sorters’ to 
manage and administer these notifications.

In order to mitigate this risk Officers will visit East Kent Services so that this 
issue can be interrogated in more detail. This will enable a better insight into 
the problem and so that the impact on administration and existing resources 
in the Revenues & Benefits Partnership can be assessed and addressed at 
an early stage..  

5.5. It was highlighted that the frequent recalculation of UC where a Council Tax 
Reduction (CTR) claim is in payment is having a considerable impact on the 
recovery of council tax. 

In order to mitigate this risk the Council will undertake a fundamental review 
of the CTR scheme to ensure it is fit for purpose in 2019/20 when the UC full 
service has been fully rolled out in the Borough.

5.6. Applications for DHPs are increasing significantly and are time consuming 
for staff to administer, using manual processes to assess and determine the 
outcome.  

In order to address the impact of an increasing number of applications and 
to help mitigate the increasing burden of administering claims, Capita’s 
online DHP solution has been purchased. This will provide an intelligent, 
flexible online form to make applying for help easier and the solution also 
contains inbuilt workflow automation that can calculate income and 
expenses to assist in the decision making process. 

Customers will have the ability to track the progress of their claim online 
and, within agreed parameters, the application and decision making process 
can be fully automated from start to finish. This will deliver an instant 
decision to the claimant at the time the application is submitted, thereby 
improving customer service and reducing the stress and worry of having to 
wait for a decision.



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

6. Discretionary Housing Payments

6.1. A recent report from ‘Inside Housing’ indicates that councils in UC areas are 
making more use of their DHP funds. 

6.2. The following details the amount of DHP funding given to the Council by the 
DWP over the last 5 years, the level of spend for the respective periods and 
the overall financial impact on the Council.

Year DWP 
Allocation

Spend Over(+)/
under(-) 
spend

Cost to 
Council

2012/13 £72,337 £59,681 - £12,656 £0
2013/14 £154,767 £82,652 - £72,115 £0
2014/15 £146,988 £105,657 - £41,331 £0
2015/16 £101,075 £100.028 - £1,047 £0
2016/17 £144,258 £123,209 - £21,049 £0

6.3. Despite an increase in funding of £65,534 for 2017/18, there has also been 
a significant increase in the number of DHP applications received, the 
number of successful claims and the total amount awarded. The table 
below shows the comparison:

DWP 
Allocation

Spend Successful 
claims

Unsuccessful 
claims

Apr 17 – 
Feb 18

£209,792 £205,495 292 191

Apr 16 – 
Feb 17

£144,258 £114,733 198 141

6.4. Administering and awarding DHPs and keeping within the DWP funding 
allocation is becoming more challenging and the latest forecast is that the 
total amount of DHP awarded for 2017/18 is likely to exceed the DWP 
allocation by £3,000. 

6.5. The challenge to remain within budget year-on-year is undoubtedly 
becoming more difficult, especially as the DWP allocation for 2018/19 has 
been reduced by £23,026 from £209,792 to £186,766.  However, councils 
are able to top-up the DWP allocation from their own funds up to a maximum 
of two and half times the allotted amount if they choose to. Therefore, the 
maximum top-up permitted for 2018/19 would be £280,149.

7. Communication & Engagement

7.1. The Council’s Landlords’ Forum meets on a quarterly basis to discuss current 
issues and to build stronger working relationships.  A presentation was given 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

to the Forum last year on the implications of the Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017. 

7.2. Landlords have not been directly engaged in terms of UC, however, a multi-
agency Hub has been created which includes representatives from the DWP, 
Citizen’s Advice (CA), Revenues & Benefits and the newly created Inclusion 
Officer (was HERO) to mitigate the impact on tenants that may be at risk. 
The HUB will therefore provide a specific reactive landlord service and has 
scope to increase HB and CA capacity if necessary.

7.3. In addition to the above, Officers attend Kent-wide meetings to discuss UC 
related issues with a representative from the National Landlord’s Association 
(NLA) and are in the process of developing a Landlord’s working group.

7.4. Within Revenues & Benefits, communication and engagement with partners 
is primarily facilitated through the Benefits forum. This provides an 
opportunity to engage with key partners and keep representatives informed 
and updated on UC so that organisations can then relay UC information to 
residents through their own communication channels.

7.5. The forum takes place every quarter and a DWP Partnership Manager 
attends to provide an update on UC. There is also an opportunity to 
exchange information and have a discussion on UC between all the 
representatives in attendance. The table below details the list of invitees.

Revs & Bens 
Shared Service 
Staff

Dartford Staff Other attendees 

Benefit Manager

Quality Team 
Manager

Benefits Team 
Leader

Billing & 
Collection 
Manager

Housing 
Manager

Senior Housing 
Officer

Housing Options 
& Private Sector 
Manager

Customer 
Services 
Manager

Business 
Support Officer 
(Customer 
Services)

 DWP Partnership 
Managers
(Dartford and Tunbridge 
Wells)

 North West Kent Citizens 
Advice
(Dartford, Edenbridge and 
Sevenoaks)

 Kent County Council – 
Benefits Advice Officers

 Amicus Horizon
 Aragon Housing (Grand 

Union)
CDS Co-operatives 
Housing Association (HA)

 Hanover HA
 Hyde HA
 London & Quadrant Group
 Moat HA
 North West Kent Women’s 

Aid 
 Places for People



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

 Richmond Fellowship
 Rockdale HA
 Sevenoaks Area MIND
 Town & Country Housing 

Group
 West Kent HA
 YMCA Thames Gateway

7.6. In addition to the Benefit Forum, regular meetings with the DWP’s Thames 
Gateway Partnership Manager and Integrated Partnership Manager are 
taking place with officers from Revenues & Benefits, Housing and Customer 
Services.

7.7. The primary purpose of these meetings is to ensure good information flow as 
well as identifying and overcoming any barriers in respect of the transition to 
UC. The following highlights some of the work undertaken so far:

 DWP Partnership Managers are delivering briefing sessions for front-
line staff

 The local Partnership Manager is leading on engagement with 
stakeholders and has attended a number of meetings leading up to the 
implementation of the UC full service

 Exchange visits with Jobcentre staff are being arranged to initiate an 
understanding and appreciation of respective roles and responsibilities 

 Identifying opportunities to improve communication and ensure that 
claimants understand and engage with UC

 Looking at how claimants with specific on-going and fluctuating risks 
and vulnerabilities are identified and ensuring that an infrastructure is 
in place so that referrals can be made to appropriate support services 
for help in managing the UC process.

7.8. These meetings, together with the forum meetings, will continue to act as the 
catalysts that help claimants to:

 successfully make a claim for UC
 understand the amount of UC awarded and
 sustain and manage their UC claim

7.9. Plans are also being made to further improve communication and 
engagement by promoting some useful UC tools that have been produced 
to help UC claimants.

7.10. The Money Advice Service has built a UC Money Manager tool to help those 
claiming UC or moving onto it for the first time to be financially better 
prepared. The tool asks a series of questions and then gives tailored advice 
relevant to the claimant’s circumstances. It provides a task list that can be 
worked through and it also contains a simple budget planner. The tool is 
currently being used in Job Centres and it will shortly be made available on 
the Council’s website. Once it is available, a concerted effort will be made to 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

promote it. 

7.11. The DWP have also launched www.understandinguniversalcredit.gov.uk, a 
new website that helps to give claimants a better understanding of UC. A link 
to this website will soon be available on the Council’s website. 

8. Risks and Impact Assessment

  Waiting time between making a claim and receiving the first payment 

8.1. Before the changes were introduced on 14 February 2018, UC claimants 
were not paid for the first 7 days after the claim was made (this period was 
known as ‘waiting days’). However, the changes announced in the 2017 
Autumn Budget removed this element from the claims process and 
consequently, this means that the average wait for a first payment has 
reduced from 6 weeks to 5 weeks.

8.2. DWP can award an advance payment of UC for new claimants who expect 
to struggle meeting essential expenditure whilst waiting for their first 
payment. DWP staff should offer claimants an advance payment at the UC 
interview but from Spring 2018, DWP have said they expect that claimants 
will be able to request an advance through their online account. Advance 
payments will only be granted where the UC claim looks likely to result in an 
award. The advance payment is a loan and must be repaid, usually by 
deducting the agreed repayment amount from subsequent payments of UC.

8.3. From 11 April 2018, the financial impact on claimants in receipt of HB who 
move on to UC will be mitigated even further because they will also be 
entitled to HB for two weeks during the wait for their first UC payment. This 
‘double’ payment will have a positive impact on rent accounts and also give 
tenants in the private sector some breathing space. 

  Claimants in the private rented sector in receipt of UC

8.4. A recent survey carried out by the Residential Landlords Association found 
that one in three private landlords of UC claimants report their tenants are in 
rent arrears. 

8.5. The results of the survey are contained in the RLA’s document 'Welfare 
Reform and Universal Credit: The impact on the private rented sector’. The 
report analyses the responses to a survey of 2,974 landlords across the UK, 
finding that one in three reported that they attempted to evict a tenant in the 
past 12 months, with the majority (60%) reporting this was due to rent arrears, 
with tenants on average owing in excess of £1,000.

Of those who let to tenants on UC:

 38% of landlords reported that they have experienced tenants on UC 
going into rent arrears in the past 12 months

 53% successfully requested an alternative payment arrangement

http://www.understandinguniversalcredit.gov.uk/


SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

 45% reported that the DWP were unhelpful when contacted; and
 the issue of rent arrears for UC tenants was one of the leading reasons 

for attempting to regain possession of the property (64% of landlords 
reported this).

  Claimants under 21

8.6. Some 18-21 year olds claiming UC in a full service area will not be entitled to 
help with housing costs. It is not possible to identify affected cases in advance 
of a claim for UC but it is pertinent to highlight that there are categories of 18-
21 year olds who will still be able to get help with their housing costs. Some 
groups include:

 people receiving UC housing costs prior to 1 April 2017 until they move 
off UC or cease to claim those housing costs

 certain vulnerable people
 people unable to live with their parents and those claiming as a couple 

9. Financial Risks

  Rental Income/Collection

9.1. One of the issues around the roll out of UC in terms of the approach adopted 
by the DWP is that it is ’test and learn’ so roll out has been deliberately slow 
to enable lessons to be learned; initially from the pilots, then other sites, on 
the basis of a phased roll out involving initially small numbers.

9.2. Dartford was in Tranche 4 for the initial roll out in January 2016. The numbers 
involved were manageable and made it possible to contact those involved 
and ensure that there has been no impact on arrears caused by UC. Looking 
forward to the roll out to the full service there will be greater challenges due 
to the larger numbers involved. The Council has prepared for this by 
increasing resources available to visit tenants by appointing a Visiting Officer 
within the rents team to help maximise tenant’s income. And, as detailed in 
this report, the HERO Officer will be replaced by an Inclusion Officer within 
the Housing Solutions team who will form part of the Housing HUB. 
 

9.3. In addition to this, changes being introduced by the Government include a 
newly established Landlord’s Portal currently being rolled out to large 
landlords that should come into effect for smaller landlords including Dartford 
as we approach full service. This will specifically help to ensure that 
communications between social housing landlords are improved at the time 
new claims are made and where ‘managed payments’ for vulnerable clients 
are required. 

9.4. As detailed earlier in this report, recent changes to HB Regulations enable 
payment for the first two weeks of HB to be paid to ease the transition to UC. 
 Evidence from the pilots has shown that it is the initial transition to UC that 
created a problem and led to an increase in arrears. These changes should 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

help mitigate the impact alongside the other measures outlined in this report. 
  

Council Tax Income/Collection

9.5. From May 2018 to the end of March 2019, the move to the UC full service 
could impact on Council Tax recovery. The main issue is that housing costs 
are paid as part of the UC but any financial help towards Council Tax during 
this period will have to be claimed separately and directly from the Council. 
The DWP will notify the Council of a person’s entitlement to UC and it will be 
this notification that will trigger an invitation to be sent to the claimant to claim 
CTR.

9.6. It is anticipated that a proportion of people will not take up the invitation. Whilst 
every effort will be made to follow up on cases that do not engage it is possible 
that claims will not be forthcoming and therefore, people who are already on 
a low income could be missing out on help towards their Council Tax costs. 
In addition to this, the delays in awarding UC and the cumulative impact of 
welfare reforms may have a detrimental impact on the financial resources 
available to households to meet essential household bills. 

9.7. In order to alleviate the requirement to make a separate claim for CTR, the 
CTR scheme for 2019/20 will recommend incorporating a provision which will 
enable the Council to treat a notification of UC entitlement as a claim for CTR. 
 Unfortunately, the regulations do not allow for in-year amendments to be 
made to CTR schemes so this amendment cannot be made to the current 
scheme. However, if this amendment is approved for the 2019/20 scheme it 
will mitigate the problem detailed above and ensure that nobody misses out 
on their potential entitlement to CTR.

10.  Resource Impact Assessment

10.1. Customer Services deal with all HB and CTR enquiries, both face-to-face and 
over the telephone, and there will undoubtedly be an increase in the number 
of enquiries from UC claimants. Frontline staff are currently increasing their 
knowledge of UC through training that has been arranged with the DWP 
Partnership Manager and through the UC full service local authority support 
pack issued by the DWP. The pack has been designed to support councils 
develop their own learning and development material to support the staff 
whose job roles will be impacted by the introduction of UC full service.

10.2. In respect of Revenues & Benefits, the anticipated decrease in the HB 
caseload in the short to medium-term is expected to be offset by the additional 
work required to help facilitate the transition to UC and the expected increase 
in work resulting from the volume and quality of UC notifications that will be 
received from the DWP.  

11. Relationship To The Corporate Plan

Theme 5 - TO FACILITATE QUALITY, CHOICE AND DIVERSITY IN THE 
HOUSING MARKET, TO CREATE STRONG AND SELF RELIANT 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

COMMUNITIES AND DELIVER HIGH QUALITY SERVICES TO SERVICE 
USERS

12. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments

Financial Implications As detailed in this report

Legal Implications The Universal Credit Regulations 2013 No. 376 
is a Statutory Instrument.

Staffing Implications As detailed in this report

Admin Implications None

Risk Assessment There is some risk to the Council that the full roll 
out of UC may impact on the level of rent arrears.  
The actual impact is unknown at this stage, 
however, the Council has put measures in place 
to help mitigate this risk, as detailed in Section 
9.1 – 9.4 of this report.

13. Details of Exempt Information Category - None.

14. Appendices - None

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section &
Directorate

Exempt
Info 
Category

Peter Dosad
(01322) 343327

Nick Scott
(01732) 227397

Head of 
Housing 
Services

Head of 
Revenues & 
Benefits





SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 APRIL 2018

PRINCES PARK

Ward: Brent

  
1.   The Chairman has requested an update on the lease and Service Level                

Agreements between the Council and Dartford Football Club. 

2. RECOMMENDATION
    That the contents of the report be noted.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The lease for Dartford Football Club (covering the whole of Princes 
Park with the exception of the mini pitches) was completed in March 
2012 and will expire on 31 January 2034.

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) for community facilities (excluding 
the mini pitches) shall be in place until March 2019.

Due to the grant from the Football Foundation, which part funded the 
build of the mini pitches, the Council has to account for all income and 
expenditure. A three year agreement is in place until 31 March 2020.

3.2 In 2008/9 the cost to the Council to operate Princes Park was 
£158,000. The grant payable to Dartford Football Club in 2017/18 was 
£90,000 and shall remain for 2018/19.

The net income for the first 9 months of this financial year 2017/18 is 
£31,754 and this compares to £33,035 for the same period in 2016/17 
for the mini pitches. 

3.3 The update report for 2017/18 from Dartford Football Club is attached 
as Appendix A.

4   Relationship to the Corporate Plan

HW2 Increase the opportunities for participating in sporting, cultural 
and leisure opportunities

5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 APRIL 2018

Financial Implications None specifically from this report

Legal Implications None specifically from this report

Staffing Implications None

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment None specifically from this report

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A – Dartford Football Club Report 2017/18

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section 
and

Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Stephen Jefferson Policy & 
Corporate 
Support

N/A



APPENDIX A

Princes Park July 17 –March 2018

Gate attendances July 2017 - March 2018: 30,463 – This was a full set of league fixtures and 
friendlies also x3 cup games.

Golf usage: April 2016 - March 2017:448 rounds by members / loyalty cards holders, 652 pay on gate 
rounds. – Numbers were affected due to an issue with the sprinkler system over the height of the 
summer period. The irrigation system firstly needed a motor in April which meant no water on the 
greens for a 2 week period apart from the occasional rain fall. Then in July the sprinkler heads were 
not popping up which was caused by a faulty solenoid and the pump not being powerful enough. 
This issue took 3 weeks to fix as we waited for parts, in this time there was no rainfall and the greens 
became very dry, cracked and the grass died. This affected numbers using it until greens were 
rectified. We also installed a new system at each hole that means if this issue happens again we can 
attach a hose at each hole and manually water the greens which was not there before.

Foot golf usage: April 2017 – March 2018: 900 pay on gate rounds. 

Community Pitch and Mini Pitches were used by over 30 local clubs in the last year. They all have 
regular weekly bookings. We also booked in over 150 casual bookings from people in the local 
community.

Dartford have continued to run a loyalty scheme where golfers pay for 5 rounds and get their 6th 
free. The golf and foot golf course is advertised on twitter, Facebook, website, periodically in the 
programme and has been advertised in local magazine Dartford Living. An advertising board is pitch 
side within the stadium, and there is also a road sign on Princes Road by the main gates promoting 
the golf course. Feedback from members is that the general state of the course (rough, fairways, and 
bunkers) is much better than previous years.

Dartford FC carried on working in partnership with UK foot golf to develop the sport at Princes Park. 
As a club we are still implementing it in community visits and school trips, also in school holiday 
courses. We also have ambassadors who were very active in promoting it on social media with 
videos, photos etc. We also held a national tournament in January 2018 where competitors from all 
over the country visited. We sent out loads of leaflets at the Dartford festival and to all new housing 
estates in the area, with information on Dartford FC but also free vouchers for foot golf to try and 
encourage new players. We have had a lot of family’s use this voucher and I hope to see return 
business in the next holidays. We have a Princes Park team sponsored by Dartford Living who 
competes in a league across the south east, therefore promoting the ground. They got to finals day 
last year and came 4th overall. Members of the Princes Park team are known nationally as being top 
players and in the top 5 of the UK rankings.

Dartford FC have regular bookings online for all its facilities, it allows people to book golf, foot golf, 
mini pitches and community pitch online. Payment can be taken there and then through PayPal 
which is easier for the customer.

Thamesmead Town FC spent their first season out of five with us as part of the ground share. They 
started a scheme for Dartford FC season ticket holders that could watch them when Dartford play 



away and admission was half price. Their average crowd was 100 this season which for being a team 
that is out of the area and in the league they are in is not bad. So 2400 in total.

The club run 4 academy teams, two are linked with Leigh academy alongside the 35 youth teams in 
the pre academy and junior teams.

THE LEIGH ACADEMY x2 teams

Dartford Football Club is linked with neighbouring school, The Leigh Academy, to give students the 
opportunity to continue working towards their A-Levels whilst pursuing their passion in Football.

Phil Murray (Head of DFC Youth Development) and Sean Scolding (DFC Community Lead) have been 
working alongside Simon Beamish (Leigh Academies Trust CEO), Sue Crocker (Leigh Academies Trust 
Business Director) and Sharon Waterman (Leigh Academy Principal) in order for the scheme to come 
together. With The Leigh Academy and Dartford FC being located next door to each other it was an 
opportunity that no one involved could miss out on and a chance to create an ongoing partnership.

Dartford FC already has an Academy in place which runs in partnership with SCL and offers students 
the chance to gain BTECs along with qualifications and experience in football. Due to many young 
adults aspiring to go to university after their school education is over, the necessity of A Levels is 
something that students would currently miss out on at Dartford. The new partnership with The 
Leigh Academy now enables those who have a passion for football to continue their studies towards 
the qualifications they need whilst receiving regular training and coaching from highly qualified FA 
coaches affiliated to the football club, plus the opportunity to represent the club at levels between 
Youth Conference Alliance League and the new SCL League with the possibility of progressing into 
the First Team or higher.

With A Levels such as Biology, Media Studies and P.E. to choose from there is a suitable variety of 
options available for any candidate who is interested in the scheme. In order for students to gain 
their place on the course they must obtain 5 GCSEs grade A-C including Maths and English. Once 
their academic application is successful they will be offered a trial at Dartford Football Club.

We currently have x22 Year 1 students and x9 Year 2 students’ .Next season we obviously hope that 
all x22 year 1 students will continue into year 2 and we take a new intake of year 1 students, 
doubling our numbers from Leigh Academy. We also have a meeting setup with Leigh Academy 
about expanding this scheme to the other schools in the trust (Wilmington, Longfield, UTC) this 
could help us in the community and provide additional income. If anything started it would be from 
September 2018.

SCL x2 teams

COURSE

A 2-year, full-time education and football development programme for 16-18 year olds. 

Year 1 - BTEC Level 3 Subsidiary Diploma in Sport

Year 2 - BTEC Level 3 Diploma in Sport



Players will study a variety of nationally-recognised qualifications within sport, coaching and fitness 
managed by SCL. 

Where required students will study Maths and English GCSE or Functional Skills.

SCL Education Group is one of the UK’s leading independent providers of education through sport. 

Government approved post-16 private education provider

Experts in the field of sport and education delivery with over 15 years' experience

Nationally recognised for high quality advice and guidance 

Programmes delivered in real sports environments 

Proven Progression routes

UCAS POINTS

Up to 280

LEAGUE

Conference Youth Alliance and SCL league

COST

FREE for 16-18 year olds 

ENTRY REQUIREMENTS

3 GCSES A-C preferably one Maths or English

FOOTBALL TRAINING

Dartford FC

EDUCATION PROVIDER

SCL Education Group

Play in the Football in the Conference Youth Alliance and SCL league

Daily training from highly qualified FA coaches

Guidance on individual football fitness

Nutritional advice

Regular appraisal to monitor development both on and off the pitch

The Dartford FC Academy is the pinnacle of the football club's development programme and the 
final stage of preparation prior to Reserve and First Team football.



With our extensive youth development system, we have developed an outstanding reputation for 
nurturing talented players through this and into professional and non-league football. 

The Academy will play a fundamental role in Dartford FC’s youth department which will strive to 
create a development culture with the primary function of developing players to compete in the 
First Team squad.

Here at Dartford FC, we are passionate about developing young footballers through the delivery of 
quality coaching, a unique and unrivalled education programme with the use of modern, state-of-
the-art-facilities.

Players such as Charlie Sheringham (AFC Bournemouth), Cody McDonald (Coventry City FC) and Dave 
Martin (Derby County FC) have all developed their football with the First Team at Dartford FC before 
being signed by their respective professional clubs showing the calibre of player that the football 
club is producing.

We currently have Deren Ibrahim, Ronnie Vint, Richard Seixas, Michael Habte, Tony Coxall, and Alfie 
Pavey in the first team squad, all have come through the academy or pre-academy.

PRE-ACADEMY (7-16)

The pre-academy at Dartford FC forms part of our player pathway to first team football at the club. 
We aim to create a learning environment where talented young players, many of whom have been 
at professional clubs, can continue to progress. Whilst winning is important, our emphasis focuses 
on the way we play. Therefore, developing players who have tactical as well as technical skill is 
delivered throughout the years through a well-balanced learning syllabus.

Our squads start at u7 (school year 2) and go through to u16s (school year 11), they then trial for our 
full academy if they have achieved the standards required. At an appropriate point, players are 
signed exclusively to the pre-academy squads, until then they can play for their local club teams as 
well. The squads play in the Elite Development Programme (EDP) against professional and semi-
professional advanced player centres. They also play against professional club academy squads.

The U13s – U16s are members of the Junior Premier League with such teams as Portsmouth, 
Bournemouth, Woking, Isle of Wight, Basingstoke, and Charlton. Foundation squad players are 
expected to be coached for 1.5 hours per week and the Development phase players for 3 hours per 
week. They are coached by minimum FA Level 2, YCA Module 2 coaches, or coaches who are working 
towards that minimum standard.

The pre-academy is divided into two phases for players to learn and develop in the way that our 
clubs wants them to. We feel that this meets the requirements of the FA strategy, ‘The Future Game’ 
and mirrors the approach taken in in the professional academy environments through the Elite 
Player Performance Plan.

FOUNDATION PHASE

This phase focuses on the development of our u8s – u11. At these ages we focus on Agility, Balance 
& Coordination, and the ABCs. Fun and technique are paramount. Whilst it is serious stuff, we like 



the players to learn and develop in a more ‘discovered learning’ environment, so developing an 
inquiring mind and approach is key. A mild sense of self-discipline will be instilled as well. 

DEVELOPMENT PHASE

This phase focuses on the development of our u12s – u16s. Whilst technical ability is still key in 
terms of the player development process, at these ages players start to learn about the bigger game. 
Roles, responsibilities and tactical application on the field come above winning. A winning mentality 
is strongly encouraged, but not at the cost of losing sight of playing our kind of football. Footballers 
for all scenarios during in a game, is what we need. To be able to read a game and know what is 
required as: an individual; part of a function; and, as a squad as a whole, whilst being strongly 
disciplined….will see a player through to our Academy!

ELITE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

We have joined a programme involving professional and semi-professional club advanced and 
development centres. Primarily, this involves playing clubs in tri-tournaments during school holidays. 
The clubs involved are: Arsenal, Brighton, MK Dons, Wycombe Wanderers, Walsall, Northampton, 
Histon, Oxford, Brentford and Luton.

In addition to the Elite Development Programme, we play against: Millwall, Gillingham, QPR, Fulham, 
West Ham, West Brom, Woking, Basingstoke, Leyton Orient and Bournemouth. In the main, these 
fixtures involve our Development Phase (u12s – u16s) squads.

The club is keen to support local football in the Kent County as well. Our Development Phase squads 
continue to support the local county cup competitions. In addition, we are working with other clubs, 
the FA and local /national youth leagues, in order to create a strategic approach to delivering a 
programme just outside of the professional game.

GIRLS SQUADS

 Dartford FC already has a thriving girl’s structure. We now have 5 teams from U14s- U16s and a 
Ladies 1st team, who train at the club once a week coached by qualified Pre Academy staff. We also 
run a girls development centre (school years 3 – 6) with the aim of the sessions to develop existing 
talent and encourage girls in the community to get involved in the club. We hope that with a few 
years hard work we can see a vast improvement in the numbers of girls’ squads on offer. Their 
competitive games are played in the Kent Girls and Ladies football league.

The ladies 1st team have completed their first season. They are in a very competitive league with 
established teams, but managed to finish 4th which was a great effort. They have also spent the 
season promoting themselves at the men’s 1st team games to try and encourage people to watch 
them on Sunday’s

Dartford Junior Section



Dartford Football Club runs a thriving and successful Junior Section with teams ranging from U 7 
through to U21’s x20 teams in total. All those involved are volunteers, including managers and 
coaches.

The aim of the Junior Section is to provide adequate facilities for training and matches, arrange 
matches and social events for the members and the surrounding community, provide a competitive, 
friendly standard of football for boys and girls aged 7-21 at the cheapest possible price and to 
promote the game of ‘association football’.

The club holds the prestigious FA Charter Standard status and has been awarded one of the highest 
levels possible that of a Development Club.

All our Junior Team Managers and Coaches are CRB checked,  qualified to a minimum of FA Level 1 
with some going on to achieve  FA Level 2. Each team has at least 1 Coach and/or Manager that has 
attended the FA Safeguarding Children & 1st Aid Workshops.  The Child Welfare Officer and 
Committee members regularly carry out checks to ensure that managers and coaches adhere to the 
rules of the club.  These include ensuring the safety of the children whilst in their care and carry out 
spot checks at matches to ensure managers have a full first aid kit.

Mini Soccer School

Our mini soccer school operates on a pay and play basis meeting every Saturday during the football 
season – September to May.  Our sessions consist of fun based learning of all aspects of football 
including:

Passing

Dribbling (close ball skills)

Shooting

1v1 skills

Team work

Our aim is to nurture the interest and love of football in boys and girls aged 4-6 (reception- Yr1 only) 
with the option of joining a Dartford Junior Section team when they reach the appropriate age 
group.  At intervals during the season, there may be opportunities for players to get involved with 
tournaments and competitions giving them practical experience of playing in a team.

The coaches who run our Mini Soccer School come from our own Junior Section and are CRB 
checked, hold FA Safeguarding Children qualifications, First Aid badges and are trained to FA Level 1 
standard.

Our Mini Soccer School is run on the 3G mini all weather pitches which are a great surface for 
children to learn and develop their footballing skills.  

Community



In June 2016 we received a grant from Winners Chapel to set up outreach centres in the community 
and also a schools programme which was renewed this year as the chapel were pleased with the 
progress. The outreach centres take place in Dartford and Swanscombe, these occur once a week, on 
average 20 young people attends per centre.  We currently working with 5 primary schools 
delivering free football / sports sessions. 

We also have 3 satellite centres for girls and they take place at Wilmington Grammar, Dartford 
Grammar and Wilmington academy. In total we have engaged with 150 young people and have 
recruited girls for our own teams through this.

We continue with the school curriculum project and have had 2 schools participate this year. This 
involves 60 children per school using sport and football within their core curriculum subjects. 
Wentworth and Holy Trinity are the schools involved

We also work with schools partnership to deliver district primary school football and have hosted a 
number of schools tournaments in the past year.

Through our partnership with DBC we continue to host healthy living activity, targeting young 
vulnerable adult males. They carry out physical activities on pitches and foot golf as well as learning 
to cook and manage day to day tasks. 

Darren Phillips who runs Dartford District has taken over as our community officer. He already has a 
great relationship with the primary schools in Dartford and will look to further the relationship by 
running new schemes, giving away tickets and inviting schools to games, getting them involved in 
design work and hopefully running a lot more after school clubs. We also are holding the final of the 
schools tournament at Princes Park on the main pitch before the last game of the season. 

We have also started a partnership with Millwall FC to provide joint holiday courses at Princes Park. 
The hope is to attract more children with link to a higher profile team as we know that support for 
Millwall in this area is very high.

Dartford FC has also chosen Lollipops charity and more specifically the children’s ward at Darent 
Valley Hospital as the chosen charity for this year, and we will be making collections, providing raffle 
prizes and providing coaching sessions for kids in the summer.

Catering & Functions

The catering section is operated by the same company, in the past year they have had 315 functions. 
They host regular networking mornings for local businesses as well as big corporate functions. 
Birthday parties, funerals and wedding receptions are also very popular.

Baby Ballet occurs every Monday and Saturday with over 100 children per session along with their 
parents.

Dartford Living magazine hold regular networking events and the Mayor and council uses the venue 
for functions. We recently had council consultations for Lowfield Street and new developments.

Salsa classes are every Wednesday with 150 people attending regularly.



In the past year they have also held functions for Demelza House, St Michaels Church, Wilmington 
primary school, Alzheimer UK, The Princes Trust, Teacher conferences for DASCO, Darenth Valley 
Hospital. 

Champions Bar is open daily from 10am – 6pm for golfers, foot golf, parents for football and general 
public.

The Road runners still use our facilities on Tuesday’s and Sunday’s. We are hosting their 5 mile run in 
August where runners from all over the area will start and finish at Princes Park and will be running 
around the Dartford area.

New

We started a new lease with G4S who provide transport to non-emergency patients to Darenth 
valley Hospital. They have a section of our overflow car park to park their ambulances, and to have 
x3 porta cabins, office, toilets and a store. This went through planning, and the valuation 
department and was all approved for a lease until 2024. On match days they move the ambulances 
to the top plaza so we don’t lose any spaces for supporters.  

Improvements were made to the overflow car park to fill in pot holes and resurface areas, this will 
be done again this summer, and is part of the G4S contract to maintain. 

We have entered into a licence with Paul Page Golf Academy to oversee and run the golf side of the 
golf course here at Princes Park. This licence will run until 2024. He will pay Dartford FC a rent for the 
course and will pay half of the groundsman’s fees for the course. In return he will keep all golf 
membership and greens fees from golf on the course. We will still keep all foot golf income. He is 
installing a cabin by the 1st tee to have as a reception area and it will also house an indoor simulator 
so he can do lessons indoor as well when the weather is bad. All foot golf bookings will still be taken 
in the main building.

Jack Smedley

Operations Manager, Dartford FC



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19

1. Summary

To identify items for inclusion in the Committee’s Work Programme for the 
ensuing 2018 – 19 municipal year and allocate a timeframe accordingly.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee agrees the proposed standard items for consideration by 
Members as set out in the draft Work Plan (attached at Appendix A to this 
report) and identifies further topics for inclusion in the Work Programme for 
2018-19 as appropriate.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The Scrutiny Committee’s Terms of Reference make provision for the 
Committee to approve an Annual Scrutiny Work Programme.

3.2 The Committee is responsible for setting its own Work Programme   
and in doing so, the Committee will take into account the minority 
interest views held by Members on the Committee.

3.3 The programme should ensure that there is efficient use of the 
Committee’s time and that the potential for duplication of effort is 
minimised, especially with regard to the remits of the Crime and 
Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) and the Policy Overview Committees.

3.4 In considering whether a particular topic or function should be 
included in the Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme, Members 
need to be mindful of the following:

(1) that the primary role of the Committee is to scrutinise 
decisions of the Cabinet that have either been taken or which are 
included in the Regulation 9 Notices for future consideration by 
Cabinet;

(2) that although the nature of the scrutiny will generally dictate 
who participates in the discussion process, inviting participation 
by other councils to give their experiences is not a scrutiny 
function, but one for the Policy Overview Committee which 
undertakes the overview function, to better inform future policy 
options for the Council;

(3) that discussions on policy statements fall to the Policy 



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 April 2018

Overview Committee who hold the overview function to consider, 
not the Scrutiny Committee; and 

(4) that matters relating to crime and disorder, including anti-
social behaviour (ASB) and Community Safety, fall within the 
remit of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) 
Committee.

3.5

3.6

3.7

Members are asked to suggest possible topics/areas for inclusion in 
the Committee’s Work Programme for 2018-19 as currently set out in 
the draft Work Plan (attached at Appendix A). 

The Work Plan will be subject to review at each meeting of the 
Committee during the forthcoming municipal cycle, to allow new items 
to be added or the timing of existing items altered. 

The Work Plan may also be supplemented with additional items on an 
ad-hoc basis, prior to scheduled meetings commencing, within the 
timescales set in the Committee’s established Draw-Down process.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints

6. Appendices

Appendix A: draft Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2018-19

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File 
Ref

Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

March 
2018

David Hook
Member Services 
(01322 343276)

Member 
Services 
MD

N/A



Appendix A 

draft SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2018-19

10 July 2018 18 September 2018 20 November 2018 19 February 
2019

Update: Dartford 
Cricket Club, 
Hesketh Park

Orchard Theatre 
Annual Report & 

Accounts ending 31 
March 2018

Princes Park 
Update

Draw-Down(s) – 
t.b.a.

Draw-Down(s) – 
t.b.a.

Draw-Down(s) – 
t.b.a.

Draw-Down(s) – 
t.b.a.

Review Work Plan
2018-19

Review Work Plan
2018-19

Review 2018-19 
Work Plan

Consider Work 
Programme for 

2019-20

Reg. 9 Notice Reg. 9 Notice Reg. 9 Notice Reg.9 Notice




	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2018
	7 Regulation 9 Notice
	8 Draw-Down: Dartford Borough Council - Readiness for full roll-out of Universal Credit in July 2018
	9 Princess Park Update
	Princess Park DFC REPORT-APPENDIX A

	10 Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018-19
	V.II Appendix A DRAFTScrutinyWorkPlan20718


